
 1

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
July 10, 2013 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the June 26, 2013 Board Meeting. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 

 
7. Consideration of Disputed Final Payment Claim made by Native Electrical 

Construction, Inc. and presentation by district staff. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 



 2

8. Attendance at ACWA 2013 Regulatory Summit and discussion regarding 
rescheduling the August 14, 2013 regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Board. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 
 
9. Event Participation - The Chautauqua on the Future of Food in Ojai, 

November 2, 2013. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 
 

Recess Casitas Board Meeting 
 
10. Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation Meeting 
 

a. Consideration to fund rowing dock replacement. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to Staff 

 
Reconvene Casitas Board Meeting 

 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Reports for May, 2013. 
b. Letter from Charles Z. Fedak & Company regarding audit. 
c. Monthly Cost Analysis – Ojai FLOW. 
d. Reimbursement Disclosure Report Fiscal Year 2012-13. 
e. Consumption Report. 
f. ACWA Call for Candidate Nominations. 
g. Letter from EPA regarding Pumping & Diversion TMDL and 

responses to comments. 
h. Investment Report. 

 
12.  Closed Session: 

 
a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 

Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation Unit.  

 
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 

Title: General Manager 
 
13. Possible adoption of resolutions authorizing adoption of a Memorandum of 

Understanding with the General, Recreation and Supervisory & 
Professional Unites may be considered following the closed session. 

 
14. Discussion and possible adoption of a change in compensation to General 

Manager’s position. 



 3

 
15. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

June 26, 2013 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 26, 2013 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Word, Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser and 
Baggerly were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
five staff members and nine members of the public in attendance.  President 
Word led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public Comments 
 

Ken Peterson with Golden State Water Company informed the board that 
the CPUC approved the water rates for our Ojai service area last month for 2013, 
2014, and 2015.  Rates will remain the same or go down for those three years 
and we have readjusted some of the tiers to be more in line with water use in 
Ojai.  He also spoke about the letter to the editor in last week’s Ojai Valley News 
that was written by Russ.  He stated he knows Russ was not speaking on behalf 
of the board even though some people in Golden State construed that he was. 
We are eligible for grant funding. Today, for instance, Golden State is using grant 
funding for purchasing and installing meters in the Sacramento area.  Director 
Baggerly thanked him for the clarification. 
 
 Dee Bennett thanked Director Hicks for his help and encouragement as 
the Casitas Rowing Club is receiving a grant from LA 84 for the boat dock.  We 
got $20,000 but we need $45,000.   
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported that there will be a shutdown tomorrow as we 
replace five mainline valves.  He then reported that he and Ms. Collin have sat 
through teleconferences with State Water contract extensions.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
  

President Word reported that Senator Jackson has extended an invitation 
to a June 27th, open house. 
 

Director Hicks commented on a huge box at the beach that neighbors 
have wondered about for some time.  It is a pressure regulator and perhaps we 
should mark is as CMWD.  
  

Director Baggerly thanked staff for the newsletter but commented that the 
water quality table is difficult to read.  A constituent suggested color coding it and 
making it more simple to read. 
 

Director Baggerly then provided a Google Earth photo of the parking lot at 
LCRA by the bait shop showing exactly where he would like an exit sign placed.   
Staff has done a good job of putting signs and putting lane markers in.  



 2

 
Director Kaiser mentioned the Astronomy night this weekend and he 

hopes there will be good attendance.  He added that there is great signage for 
habitat and it has been done in an unobtrusive way.  He then asked about the 
one dock floating in the mid-section in Santa Ana creek and asked if that is for 
people who have not paid fees?  Ms. Belser replied that with the lake going down 
there is no room to put it anywhere else.  Gary and Randy have decided to put it 
there and the people are ok to get ferried out. 
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the June 12, 2013 Board Meeting. 
 

On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the Consent Agenda was adopted. 
   
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Hicks asked about a check which Mr. Wickstrum explained was 
for Workers’ Compensation.  Director Hicks then questioned the check for $2,590 
for drug testing.  Ms. Belser explained all employees go through drug testing and 
we hire a lot of staff.  They are also all getting fingerprinted.  Director Kaiser 
asked about #15503 to Oasis Technology and Ms. Collin explained that is for 
software. 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
b. Finance Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Kaiser and 

passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Resolution honoring Larry Chavez upon his retirement. ADOPTED  
 
 The Resolution was read by President Word and Mr. Chavez was thanked 
for his 38 years of service to the District. 
 
 The Resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 13-23. 
 



 3

8. Public Hearing for the adoption of the 2013-2014 Budget. 
 

a. Public Hearing  
 

President Word stated this is the time and place for a public hearing to 
consider input regarding the proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget.  He asked 
the Clerk of the Board to provide the names of the public who called or submitted 
communications regarding the proposed budget.  Ms. Vieira stated there were 
none. President Word then asked for the General Manager’s report.   

 
Mr. Wickstrum stated you have the memorandum before you.  I thank the 

Finance Committee, Denise Collin and all staff in preparing this budget. We have 
some major projects to complete in the coming year and staff is anxious in 
getting it going as soon as possible.  We took a conservative viewpoint on water 
sales.  It looks like water sales will be higher.  We are able to finance this district 
on that basis.  We have a deficit budget but that is due to the one large project. 
Director Baggerly suggested not calling it a deficit as we have set aside money in 
reserves and are using it for the reason it was set aside.  Director Bergen added 
that in this year’s budget we also had this situation because we budget 
conservatively.  Our capital projects have a good history of coming in on or below 
budget and I am very comfortable with this budget.  President Word added it is 
conservative and we are doing what we were designed to do to provide a back-
up supply for the Ojai Area and to provide a primary supply.  It is appropriate to 
set a conservative estimate for water sales.   
 

President Word opened public hearing at 3:28 p.m. but there was no 
public comment so he closed the public hearing at 3:29 p.m.  
 

b. Resolution adopting the general fund budget, debt service fund and 
Mira Monte water assessment district fund budgets for the Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2014.    ADOPTED 

 
The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 

Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 13-24. 
 
9. Resolution establishing the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year ending 
 June 30, 2014.       ADOPTED 
 

The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 



 4

 
  Resolution is numbered 13-25. 
   
10. Resolution fixing a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and authorizing the 
 President of the Board to execute a certificate requesting the Ventura 
 County Board of Supervisors to levy such a tax.  ADOPTED 
 

The resolution was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 13-26. 
 
11 Resolution supporting participation in the Water Bond Coalition.  

         ADOPTED 
 
 The resolution was offered By Director Baggerly including designating the 
General Manager as the contact person.  This was seconded by Director Bergen 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 13-27. 
 
12. Discussion regarding noise abatement at Reeves Road pumping facilities. 
          APPROVED 
   
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that we have had complaints from residents who 
have lived in the area.  We operate pumps regularly to move water into Ojai.  
There are motors and there is an identified noise.  The issue is the noise during 
the evening and early morning hours being slightly over the Ventura County 
planned policies.  We have pump plants throughout our district. As populations 
tend to move into areas where we have had pumps for 55 years or more, 
sensitivity is heightened.  We want to look to see if we can reduce the noise to 
acceptable levels and there is a cost to that. 
 

President Word stated it is an unplanned expense but we visited this 
pump plant some time ago and were waiting for the test results. 

Director Kaiser had some questions regarding the studies that were 
conducted and expressed concerns that there are several other pumps in close 
proximity to high resident density and he suggested looking at a district wide 
policy.  President Word added each location is somewhat unique, some have 



 5

buildings or other structures around them.  Director Kaiser stated that is why I 
would not be able to support this action today, we need to look at it as a district 
wide issue. 
 

Director Hicks suggested getting these people taken care of as we need to 
be good neighbors.  Director Bergen added we should be responsive to the 
neighbors and would like to see pre and post sound measurements. 
 

Brian Holly spoke on behalf of family and neighbors. We appreciate the 
district and service you provide.  Some of the recent emails and reports we have 
brought before the board necessitate this to take care of this sound issue.  I 
appreciate you considering this.   
 

Lou Preiczer thanked the board for the opportunity to speak and 
consideration of the request and looks forward to a remedy.  He asked that a July 
14th letter not be available to the public. 
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Hicks and 
passed with Director Kaiser providing a no vote, the above recommendation was 
approved. 
 
13. Request of Will Hobbs, President of NEC, Inc. to speak regarding the 

construction project LCRA Campground B Electrical Upgrades. 
         No Action Taken 
   

Will Hobbs of NEC thanked the board for granting our request regarding 
electrical upgrades and the disputed final payment, including sec 59 and 
liquidated damages, part b section 24.  In an effort to substantiate our claims I 
will provide a summary of events before the board makes a decision.   
 
 Mr. Hobbs stated I met onsite with Mr. Evans on January 9, 2013 and 
discussed the contract plans not showing to use the existing wire and conduit in 
place.  The distance indicated on the plans was inaccurate.  The other bids may 
have been different if those contractors didn’t measure the area.  Approximately 
six football fields length of wire was deemed required on the project that was not, 
we did our due diligence. 
 

On disputed final payment 1 CATV, as a result of revisions and dispute of 
work I request to be compensated in full.  Feb. 5, 2013 and completed version 
February 7th.  Mr. Hobbs was going to provide documents to the District but Mr. 
Wickstrum suggested he keep his originals and provide a copy to the district for 
the record. Mr. Cole stated there are two notebooks of records. Director Baggerly 
asked if Mr. Hobbs has a copy of what he is reading to provide it to our Clerk.  
Mr. Hobbs stated he can e-mail it to her. 
 

Mr. Hobbs continued stating he met with an outside vendor, Mr. Hyatt and  
provided Will Turner with the final CATV scope.  The cost for CATV revisions 
was $28,000 and those costs were denied.  We were told to use existing conduit.   
Reference to note 2, initially told it was for CATV and when Mr. Cole got involved 
that interpretation changed.  I requested what conduit to use for CATV.  Existing 



 6

conduit would not accommodate the new equipment to be installed.  Tree roots 
had grown through the conduit. 

   
 One day prior to schedule contract completion date and shortly thereafter I 
was told LD’s would be assessed.  There were 16 in ground pull boxes.  
Documentation has been submitted that supports the fore mentioned.  In our 
opinion would negate all LD’s addressed. 
 

On item 2, single lines, the bid announcement says it will change, contract 
docs do not include single line diagrams. I received one March 11 and one April 
5 which included a new conduit routing plan.  There was additional cost and time 
in completing, I request to be compensated in full for single line work.  I have 
been an electrical contractor for eight years now and have never received a plan 
without single line or panel on it. 
 

February 12, 2013, Mr. Evans requests a cost estimate for 50 amps of 
power.  Costs were submitted.  On February 28, costs were denied.  I was 
requested to preserve as much of existing…  removal and replacement of 
conduit and wire,  another revision, both occasions there were changes.  Casitas 
did approve costs to improve pedestals,  cost to upgrade wire was denied.  
Approx. 40 sites conduit and wire for 50 amps,  large boxes are now required. 
Sub panels were relocated.  Both restrooms have new conductors and conduit 
installed.  Voltage drops not provided.  Significant amount of documentation has 
been provided. Scheduled project completion day Apr. 12.  Apr 5th there is a 
revision to single line and rerouting conduit we had already installed.  Keep in 
mind we are getting these revisions a week prior to scheduled project completion 
date. 
 

  On item 3, water lines we were told there was a ½ inch water line at 18 
inches deep. At all 50 locations, the existing line was a different size and was 36 
inches deep.  I made a request for revisions and completing scope for water 
lines.  Contract documents are inaccurate.  I desire compensation for these 
additional costs. 
 

Based on revisions by CMWD staff it was impossible to complete the 
project in the time frame.  LD’s are unfounded.  I request payment for LD’s be 
remitted immediately and compensation for extra time be approved. 
 

President Word asked if we have all of the documentation and if Mr. 
Hobbs would provide what he has read.  Mr. Hobbs answered yes. 
 

Director Baggerly explained that we need to wait for staff to bring this back 
to us.  President Word added we do need to receive and review all of the 
documentation that staff has and what you have.  You have asked for decision to 
be made by July 10th.  It will have to go to a committee, perhaps the Executive 
Committee and bring back to July 10th Board meeting.  Mr. Hobbs stated all 
documentation has been sent to Neil Cole.   
 

Director Bergen added we need to follow our normal dispute resolution 
procedures.  Mr. Wickstrum agreed and added the July 10th meeting may be 



 7

aggressive. President Word asked if the normal procedure would be for staff to 
review it, make a recommendation and the board to take action.  Mr. Mathews 
said substantial information has been submitted and staff has to make a 
recommendation. Any recommendation by staff or review by staff will be made 
available to the board but also the NEC for their review prior to action by the 
board. 
 
14. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis – Ojai FLOW 
b. Consumption Report 
c. Letter from Mr. Peskay, member of County of Ventura Grand Jury. 
d. Press release regarding Assembly Bill 72 (Holden). 
e. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly and 

passed, the Information items were accepted. 
 

President Word moved the meeting to closed session at 4:11 p.m. 
 
15.  Closed Session: 

 
a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 

Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation Unit.  

 
 President Word moved the meeting back into open session at 4:20 p.m. 
with Mr. Mathews reporting that the Board received information from labor 
negotiator and no action was taken. 
 
16. Adjournment  
 

 President Word adjourned the meeting at  4:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Mary Bergen, Secretary 
 
 































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  July 1, 2013 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of July 1, 2013 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks,  
 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Park Services Manager Carol Belser  
  

 Public:   Dee Bennett, Casitas Rowing Club 
   Gary Wolfe, Marina Concessions 
   George Boston, Ventura County Comets 
   Robert Dennis, Zip Line 
    

2. Public comments.  None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.   
Directors Kaiser inquired into the dropping of tree limbs near the event area, which 
may be a result of the recent heat wave, and the progress on the dimming of the 
Campground B lights.  PSM Belser reported that the tree limb dropping and dimming 
of the lights is being attended to by staff. 
 
Director Hicks reported that the Ventura Star had an excellent article on the water park 
in today’s edition.  Also, the eagles appear to be ready to take flight from the nest. 
 
PSM Belser reported that the trolley ridership is increasing gradually each Saturday, 
no numbers were available from the last Saturday. 

 
4. Ventura County Comets, radio Control Flying Club discussion regarding the 

runway improvements.  
Mr. Boston presented to the Committee a proposal to cover the existing asphalt 
runway with a geo-fabric material.  There have been problems with the condition of the 
slurry seal applications that may be otherwise remedied by the geo-fabric.  The fabric 
would be purchased and installed by the Club, with approvals and a little over-sight by 
Casitas.  It was pointed out that the Bureau of Reclamation will be a part of the review 
and approval process.  Mr. Boston was asked to work on the proposal with PSM 
Belser. 
 

 



5. Initial discussion regarding adding a Zip Line in the Recreation Area. 
PSM Belser introduced Mr. Robert Dennis to the Committee.  Mr. Dennis has installed 
and operates the zip line near Steckel Park, Santa Paula Creek area, and has installed 
and operated many other zip line projects.   Mr. Dennis discussed in general terms the 
operation of a zip line, presented photos of zip line towers, and expressed interest in 
the demographics of the park.  The Committee asked questions of Mr. Dennis on 
various aspects of the zip line and suggested that Mr. Dennis to work with PSM 
Belser.  The Committee expressed the need for care in developing the proposal, 
keeping with the theme of the park. 

 
6. Request from the Casitas Rowing Club for consideration of a donation towards 

a new dock.  . 
Dee Bennett reported to the Committee that the Rowing Club has been awarded 
$20,000 grant from the LA 84 Committee and the Rowing Club has raised $15,000 
toward the purchase of a new rowing dock.  There is an $8,000 shortfall which the 
Rowing Club is asking Casitas to contribute.  The concept is that the dock will be 
owned by Casitas and available for public use at Lake Casitas.  Director Kaiser asked 
PSM Belser to look for other funding sources, such as the Bureau of Reclamation, 
before he could support the full funding of the $8,000.  This proposal will be moved 
forward to the Committee after additional funding sources are found by PSM Belser. 
 

7. Review of Incidents and Comments.   
PSM Belser reported that there had been a few minor incidents over the past month.  
It was noted that the Coyote Ramp bathrooms were tagged and that a formal report 
was filed with the Ventura County Sheriff. 
 
PSM Belser reported on the snafu that occurred over Memorial Day regarding 
reservations for Thanksgiving.  Staff had inadvertently taken telephone reservations 
prior to the start of the 6 month time period.  PSM Belser has resolved the reservation 
with one party, but has not received any response to her letters from either of the two 
remaining parties. 
 
The Committee was informed that the Ventura County Sheriff will be patrolling the 
Recreation Area on select summer evenings.  The additional Sheriff resources will be 
paid for by the District.  The Committee supported this direction. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  July 3, 2013 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of July 2, 2013  
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.      Directors Jim Word and Bill Hicks 
   General Manager Steve Wickstrum 

  Principal Civil Engineer Neil Cole 
  Legal Counsel Robert Krimmer  

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

Robert Krimmer reminded the committee that it is likely that today the 
Environmental Protection Agency will be issuing the TMDLs for the Ventura 
River.  The TMDLs will be available on the EPA website when issued. 
 

4. Discussion regarding possible participation in Chautauqua on the Future of 
Food in Ojai planned for November 2, 2013. 
The Committee reviewed the information that was provided for the event and 
discussed in general terms the participation by the District.  No conclusions were 
reached by the Committee.  The Committee suggested that this item be brought 
to the Board for full discussion and direction. 
 

5. Association of California Water Agencies call for Candidate Nominations. 
The General Manager reported that ACWA is requesting candidate nominations 
for the positions of Vice President and President of ACWA.  The Committee 
suggested this be place in the Board agenda as information.  There has 
generally been no prior interest by the Board to consider such nominations. 
 

6. Closed Session.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
(Subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9, Government Code).  One case. 
President Word moved the meeting to closed session at 9:50 a.m. 
President Word moved the meeting back into open session at 10:35 a.m. 
Mr. Krimmer reported that the Committee met with general counsel and staff 
regarding the case and no action was taken. 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: NATIVE ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION INC APPEAL OF FINAL COST 
STATEMENT-ELECTRICAL UPGRADES TO CAMPGROUND B, 
SPECIFICATION 12-359 

DATE: JULY 5, 2013 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the information set forth in this staff report, it is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1) Reject Native Electric Construction Inc.’s (“NEC”) request for an additional $159,704.78; 
2) Reject NEC’s request for additional working days and waiver of predetermined liquidated 

damages; and, 
3) Approve the Casitas Municipal Water District’s (“District”) Final Cost Statement for the 

contract between Casitas and NEC entitled “LCRA Electrical Upgrades to Campground B, 
Specification 12-359” (“Contract”). 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all references to Contract sections in this staff report refer to sections 
located in Contract Specifications Part B-General Conditions of the Contract. 
 
On June 5, 2013, Casitas submitted to NEC a Final Cost Statement for work performed by NEC 
under the Contract. A copy of the Final Cost Statement is attached.   
 
In a letter dated June 10, 2013, NEC set forth certain disputes regarding the Final Cost Statement 
and requesting additional payments totaling $159,704.78 as well as the elimination of predetermined 
liquidated damages.  In that same letter, NEC requested an opportunity to present its disputes to the 
Casitas Board of Directors (“Board”) prior to the Board’s consideration of the matter pursuant to 
Section 59. A copy of the June 10, 2013 letter is attached. 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board held on June 26, 2013, the Board received 
information from NEC regarding the disputes outlined in NEC’s June 10, 2013 letter. Information 
received by the Board included NEC’s June 10, 2013 letter and attachments and other 
documentation as well as verbal information presented by NEC at the meeting.   
 
In accordance with Section 59(c), the Board is required to investigate and consider the items of 
disagreement or dispute raised by NEC, and render, within a reasonable time, a decision as to the 
amount due NEC. (Section 59(c) provides as follows: “The Board shall investigate and consider the 



items of disagreement or dispute and render its decision thereon as to the amount due the Contractor 
within a reasonable time.”) 
 
This staff report and recommendations are provided to assist the Board in rendering a decision in 
this matter as required by Section 59(c).  That decision should be based on the Board’s independent 
consideration of documents and verbal information provided by NEC and Casitas staff. 

 
Summary: 
 
Casitas staff has reviewed and considered all information submitted by NEC to the Board on June 
26, 2013. Based on that review and for the reasons outlined in this staff report, Casitas staff 
concludes that all disputes set forth by NEC are unwarranted and all claims made by NEC related to 
those disputes should be rejected by the Board following due consideration of information 
submitted. 
 
Casitas staff advises the Board that the Final Cost Statement presented to NEC was revised after 
issuance. That revision reduced the predetermined liquidated damages for the days that some of the 
campgrounds were made available to Casitas.  Payment for undisputed items listed in the Final Cost 
Statement is being processed. 
 
Detail Discussion: 
 
Sections 58 and 59 set forth the procedures for disputing the Final Cost Statement as follows:    
 

58. Final Cost Statement. 
 

(a) Final Cost Statement is a document which summarizes all of the 
Contractor's earnings under this contract and any amounts due the District from the 
Contractor, and from which the final payment is made. 
 

(b) Upon completion of all of the work to be performed under this 
contract as set forth in Section 45, the Contractor shall submit for approval by the 
District in a form satisfactory to the District the amount and value of all acceptable 
work, and all extra work or changes approved by the District. 
 

(c) The Engineer shall approve the amount and value of all acceptable 
work and any extra work or changes approved by the District.  Upon mutual 
agreement thereof, this District will prepare the Final Cost Statement document 
which shall be submitted to the Contractor for his acceptance and signature. 
 

(d) Upon endorsement by the Contractor of the Final Cost Statement, the 
District shall accept the work and authorize the final payment according to Sections 
61 and 62 hereof. 

 
59. Disputed Final Payment. 
 

(a) In the event that the Contractor and the District cannot mutually 



agree as to the amount and value of the work, as set forth in this Final Cost 
Statement, the District will prepare the Final Cost Statement based upon the 
Engineer's determination of the amount and value of the work to which this 
Contractor may be entitled.  Upon receipt of this Final Cost Statement, the 
Contractor shall file with the District within five (5) calendar days thereafter, a 
written statement setting forth in complete detail the basis for his disagreement, 
including, but not limited to, any amount or value in disagreement or dispute. 
 

(b) The Board reserves the right to accept the work and file the necessary 
Notice of Completion. 
 

(c) The Board shall investigate and consider the items of disagreement or 
dispute and render its decision thereon as to the amount due the Contractor within a 
reasonable time. 
 

(d) The District will authorize payment of that portion of the Final Cost 
Statement to which the Contractor and the District have mutually agreed according 
to Section 58 hereof.  Reference is made to Section 64 of these General Conditions. 

 
The project, as it currently exists, is virtually identical to the project described in the construction 
documents.  Casitas has acknowledged and compensated NEC for those items that are not as 
originally scoped in the construction documents.  Upon submitting a bid, NEC signed a statement 
(copy attached) that their proposal included all work necessary to provide the finished project as 
contained in the drawings and specifications.  NEC also submitted with their bid, the bid sheet and a 
“Bidder’s Plan for Construction” both of which identify a complete project. Both documents are 
attached. 
 
NEC has requested an additional $159,704.78 for a project NEC originally bid at $150,000.  In the 
case of disputed work the question is whether the contract documents require the work to be 
completed.  If the disputed work is found to not be included in the construction documents, then the 
disputed work is to be paid for on a time and material basis, unless Casitas and NEC can agree on a 
price.  The requirements for establishing the time and material cost is contained in Sections 14 and 
16. 
 
NEC’s letter dated June 10, 2013 does not state the basis for the claims being made as required by 
Sections 59(a) of the Contract.  Further, the cost estimates provided by NEC in support of their 
disputed items do not include the detailed cost breakdown with documentation as required by 
Sections 14 and 16.  
 
Casitas’ inspector is well within his authority to direct a contractor to complete work as specified in 
the construction documents.  In its June 10, 2013 letter, NEC states the following: “As a result of the 
extra and disputed work performed, significant additional costs and time were required to complete 
the project pursuant to the direction provided within the numerous revisions identified by CMWD 
staff.”  Per Section 14, all extra work shall be ordered in writing before it is started.  No extra work 
will be paid for unless ordered in writing.  A Change Order is the only way extra work is authorized 
by Casitas.  All Change Orders must be signed by the General Manager or the Board of Directors.  
Therefore, all of the disputes enumerated by NEC are governed by Section 16 - “Disputed Work.”  



None of NEC’s disputed items are considered either “Extra Work” as described in Section 14 or 
work resulting from “Changed Conditions” as described in Section 15.  Again, Casitas’ inspector 
can direct NEC to proceed with work that is included in the construction documents without, as NEC 
seeks to argue, that direction constituting a change resulting in compensable increased costs to NEC. 
 
NEC requested a total of 92 additional working days for disputed work on the project.  This would 
put the required completion date for the project as August 27, 2013.  The project was substantially 
complete on May 29, 2013.  Given the differential, it appears that NEC has intentionally inflated the 
amount of time required to complete the disputed items.   
 
The following paragraphs list staff responses to the eight individual items listed in the first 
paragraph of NEC’s June 10, 2013 letter. The following paragraphs list each of the eight specific 
items in bold followed by the Casitas staff’s response. 
 
NEC ITEM (1): CATV revisions final direction provided on 4/11/13. ($29,250.00) 
 
Casitas’ staff   responded to this NEC claim in a letter from Casitas to NEC dated June 11, 2013 
under Item 1-CATV Installation Items 1-3. The June 11, 2013 letter is attached, and the pertinent 
Casitas’ response contained therein is reproduced below in italics:  
 

The contract documents require Native Electric Construction, Inc. (NEC) to re-
install the CATV system.  See Page A-8, Bid Sheet, Part C 3.c.5, Part E 3.c.3, Part K 
3 and 4 (Measurement and Payment), Drawing 2992 Sheet 2 Note 2 and Drawing 
2995 Sheet 5. 
 
NEC was allowed to re-use the existing conduit. NEC chose to demolish the existing 
system.  Therefore NEC was required to replace the previous system. The only 
“upgrade” or “change” from the existing system requested by Casitas was the 
addition of 16 node boxes.  Casitas has agreed that this is a change and has agreed 
to payment on a time and material basis.  Casitas has established the time and 
material amount per Part B 14.i as NEC failed to provide invoices for the materials 
or time sheets for this work.  Amount of this change allowed by Casitas - $1671.15.  
Casitas also allowed two extra work days for this change. To date, NEC has not 
installed the conductor (wire).  
 
NEC offered and Casitas accepted verbally an alternative that included NEC 
installing the cable TV conduit and the node boxes but not the cable TV conductor 
(wire).  This was a “no cost change” to either party offer.  NEC never followed up 
on the offer.  The acceptance from Casitas of this offer still stands. 
 
NEC’s request for additional funds in the amount of $29,520 is denied except for the 
time and material costs for the node installation.  The amount allowed by Casitas for 
the additional node installation is $1671.15. 

 
All of the work required to installed the CATV conduit is included in the contract documents 
with the exception of the node installation.  Therefore, NEC’s request for an additional 
$29,250.00 should be denied. 



 
NEC ITEM (2): Revisions to include upgraded wire sizes, additional in ground pull boxes, 
revised panel locations, and restroom upgrades as required by the 3/11/13 and 4/5/13 Single 
Line diagrams. ($73,380.86) 
 
The contract documents intentionally did not include a single line diagram nor specify the wire size 
for the pedestals to allow the contractor flexibility in construction.  It was up to the contractor to 
determine the size of wire needed to provide a fully functioning system based on the conduit runs the 
contractor chose. Casitas only provided a single line diagram at NEC’s request. NEC had finished 
most of the trenching and therefore determined the conduit runs making it possible for Casitas to 
provide the line diagram.  NEC was free to propose alternatives. 
 
Casitas’ staff responded to this NEC claim in a letter from Casitas to NEC dated June 11, 2013 under 
Items 2 through 5.  The June 11, 2013 letter is attached, and the pertinent Casitas’ response 
contained therein is reproduced below in italics:     
 

Item 2-Complete revisions associated with single line diagrams not identified at bid 
time… 
 
No single line diagram was provided to allow the bidder/contractor the discretion of 
identifying the most cost effective method of installing the required equipment.  The 
single line diagram was provided to NEC at NEC’s request.  It was provided as a 
courtesy and represented an acceptable means of construction but was not the only 
acceptable means of construction.  NEC was free to provide alternatives and to use 
any method that met the contract method requirements.  Casitas did not direct NEC 
to upgrade any additional pedestal wiring to 50 amps.  Casitas did authorize by 
change order upgrading all pedestals to 50 amp pedestals but not to upgrade the 
wiring for 50 amp service. The electrical service is insufficient to handle fifty 50 amp 
pedestals at this time. 
 
The requirement to furnish and install conduit and wire meeting the National 
Electric Code requirements to the 30 amp and 50 amp pedestals is contained in the 
Contract Documents at Page A-8 Bid Sheet, Part C 3.c, Part E (Part E 3.c.3 requires 
all new wire) in its entirety, Part K 3 and 4 (Measurement and Payment), Drawing 
2992 Sheet 2 Notes 1, 2, 3, 4, and 14, Drawing 2993 Sheet 3, Drawing 2995 Sheet 5 
and Addendum 1.  NEC’s request for an additional $47,833.80 is denied in its 
entirety” 

 
NEC installed conduit and conductors (wire) as required by the specifications drawings; 30 
amp sized conductors to forty 30 amp panels and 50 amp sized conductors for the ten 50 amp 
pedestals.  The contract documents do not allow a contractor to re-use existing conductors as 
NEC has now stated was its plan for wiring.  No additional payment is required as the work 
is included in the contract documents. 
 

Item 3-Relocate Subpanel DB 3 … 
 
Casitas allowed the subpanel to be relocated.  The relocation saved NEC 



considerable costs by reducing the wire lengths and wire size needed to install the 
pedestals.  NEC was free to install DB 3 at the location shown on the plans.  Casitas 
believes NEC could owe Casitas for the reduction in costs.  This item can only be 
classified as “Extra Work” per Part B 14.a of the construction documents if the work 
was ordered in writing by Casitas and signed by the General Manager. No such 
order was authorized by Casitas. NEC’s request for additional funds in the amount 
of $6700 is denied in its entirety. 
 

NEC had full discretion to install subpanel DB 3 in the original locationaccording to plan, 
but chose to relocate subpanel DB 3 to reduce the length and size of conductors.  This was 
NEC’s choice, the District did not object to the change in location. No additional payment is 
required for decisions made by the contractor. 

 
Item 4-Furnish and install conduit and in ground boxes … 
 
Mr. Evans is not authorized to approve change orders.  Only the General Manager 
or the Board of Directors has authority to authorize change orders.  Mr. Evans did 
not direct NEC to install the pull boxes.  This item can only be classified as “Extra 
Work” per Part B 14.a of the construction documents if the work was ordered in 
writing by Casitas and signed by the General Manager. No such order was 
authorized by Casitas.  NEC chose to not install the panels per plan. Mr. Evans did 
accept NEC’s alternative as allowed by Part B 18.  NEC was free to install the 
required conduit and conductors per the construction documents.  The alternative 
saved NEC a significant amount of time.  NEC’s request for an additional $9,900 is 
denied in its entirety. 
 

NEC chose to install the conduit and ground boxes.  Casitas did not require the ground boxes 
to be installed.  No additional payment is required for decisions made by the contractor. 
 

 
Item 5-Furnish and Install Conduit and Conductors for Restrooms … 
 
The contract documents require the installation of conductors for the restrooms 
subpanel on Page A-8 (Bid Sheet), Part C 1, Part C 3.c.8, Part E, Part K and 
Drawing No. 2992 Sheet 2 Plan and notes 6 and 7.  Note 7 allows the contractor to 
re-use the existing conduit.  NEC chose not to use the existing conduit.  NEC’s 
request for additional funds in the amount of $8,817.88 is denied in its entirety. 
 

The construction documents clearly require the restroom subpanels to be wired to the new 
system.  NEC chose to install new conduit rather than use the existing conduit.  No 
additional payment is required for decisions made by the contractor. 
 
Therefore, for NEC Item (2) in its entirety, no additional payment is justified and NEC’s 
claim $73,380.86 should be denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (3): Main water line work performed. ($4,150.00) 
 



Casitas’ staff   responded to this NEC claim in a letter from Casitas to NEC dated June 11, 2013 
under Item 8-Waterline Revisions. The June 11, 2013 is attached and the pertinent Casitas response 
contained therein is reproduced below in italics:   
 

The contract documents include protection of existing facilities and the installation 
of new hose bibs.  See Page A-8 (Bid Sheet), Part B 25.d, Part C 1, Part C 3.c.7, Part 
G 3 and 9, Part H, Part K 4 and Drawing 2295 Sheet 5 Hose Bib Detail. 
 
Each camp site had an existing hose bib.  NEC was provided with “As-Built” 
drawings for Campground B that included the drinking water system.  NEC chose to 
proceed with trenching without identifying the location of the existing system by 
potholing or other suitable means.  Therefore NEC is responsible for the extra work 
caused by NEC’s trenching for failing to protect the existing system by reasonable 
means.  NEC’s request for an additional $4150.00 is denied. 
 

The contract documents require the contractor to repair all damage to existing improvements. 
The extra work required to install the replacement hose bib assembly was caused by NEC’s 
chosen method of installation.  Therefore, NEC’s request for an additional $4,150 should be 
denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (4): Additional Trench Excavation and backfill. ($9,000.00) 
 
Casitas’ staff   responded to this NEC claim in a letter from Casitas to NEC dated June 11, 2013 
under Item 7-Additional Trench Excavation and Backfill. The June 11, 2013 is attached and the 
pertinent Casitas response contained therein is reproduced below in italics:  
  

The bid and construction documents are for a lump sum bid for a complete project.  
See Page A-8, Part C 1. Part E 2.d, Part F 4 and Part K.  It was up to the 
bidder/contractor to determine where to trench and how big the trench needed to be 
to complete the project as described in the construction documents.  No where in 
the construction documents does it specify a trench width of 6 to 12 inches.  The 
documents specify a minimum trench depth only.  Therefore the trench width 
required to complete the project as described in the construction documents was up 
to NEC to determine and include in their original bid price. Therefore, NEC’s 
request for additional funds in the amount of $9000 is denied in its entirety. 
 

The size of the trench was up to NEC to determine and include in their bid proposal.  All 
trenching completed by NEC was within the scope of work contained in the construction 
documents.  Therefore, NEC’s request for an additional $9000 should be denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (5): Additional Equipment Charges. ($2,268.00) 
 
Casitas’ staff responded to this NEC claim in a letter from Casitas to NEC dated June 11, 2013 under 
Item 8-The Equipment Listed was Necessary. The June 11, 2013 is attached and the pertinent 
Casitas response contained therein is reproduced below in italics:   
 

Casitas is unclear as to what items the equipment was used to complete.  NEC’s 



request for additional funds is not based on a time and material basis, therefore any 
equipment cost should have been included in the requested amount.  See Part A Page 
8 (Bid Sheet) Part C 1 and Part K.  On those items that Casitas has approved on a 
time and material basis, Casitas will be happy to consider the appropriate equipment 
charges.  Equipment charges are to be based on the terms contained in the contract 
documents Part B 14.g and i. 
 

NEC’s claim is unclear.  Therefore, NEC’s request for an additional $2,268.00 should be 
denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (6): Scope with providing an additional campsite with all items identified on the 
contract plans. ($3,000.00) 
 
Contract Specifications Part C Special Conditions Sections 3(c)(3), 3(c)(4) and 3(c)(5) of the 
Contract, Drawing #2992 Sheet 2, Notes 3 and 4  requires Campsites 1 through 24 and campsites 38 
through 63 to have the pedestals replaced and wired in a radial configuration, for a total of 50 
pedestals.  NEC has failed to show that they were required to install a pedestal at a campsite beyond 
those 50 campsites listed in the Contract.  
 
50 pedestals were required by the contract and 50 pedestals were installed.  Therefore, NEC’s 
request for an additional $3,000.00 should be denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (7): Extra work associated with removing and replacing existing conductors in 
place to accommodate the revisions required by 3/11 and 4/5 Single Line Diagrams. 
($16,500.00) 
 
NEC has not provided any justification for extra work claimed. All work is within the scope of the 
construction documents.  Therefore, NEC’s request for an additional $16,500 should be denied. 
 
NEC ITEM (8): Modifications necessary to accommodate the existing concrete slab and 
conduits at metered switchboard location. ($5,930.00) 
 
NEC has not provided any substantiation for their claim of disputed work.  NEC has not provided 
detailed time sheets, invoices or any other items to substantiate the cost claimed by NEC as required 
under Section 16(b).  NEC selected the replacement panel and chose the method for adjusting the 
pad to work with the NEC selected replacement panel.  Contract Specification Part C Special 
Conditions Sections 1, 3(c)(1), Contract Specifications Part D  Concrete and Reinforcing Steel, 
Contract Specifications Part K Measurement and Payment, and Contract Drawings #2992 and #2993 
cover the installation of the pad for the main service panel. 
 
All work is within the scope of the construction documents.  Therefore NEC’s request for $5,930.00 
should be denied. 
 
Additional Disputes 
 
In addition to the eight disputed items discussed above, NEC’s June 10, 2013 letter set forth 
additional disputes. Each of these disputes is discussed below with the NEC dispute bolded followed 



by the Casitas staff response:    
 
NEC Inc. disputes CMWD is entitled to the credits claimed identified in your June 5, 2013 
correspondence: 
 
Casitas has not claimed any credits in the final cost statement.  Casitas noticed NEC that Casitas 
reserved the right to the potential credits listed in the correspondence and continues to reserve the 
rights to those credits. 
 
NEC, Inc. disputes CMWD is entitled to any liquidated damages. 
 
Predetermined liquidated damages fall under Sections 22(a), 23 and 24.   
 
NEC asserts that it should not be liable for predetermined liquidated damages based on the three 
claims listed in their letter dated June 10. 2013.   
 
Section 22(a) allows for an extension if equipment is properly ordered.  Casitas approved NEC’s 
submittal of the 400 amp panel on February 12, 2013.  NEC should have ordered the panel very 
shortly thereafter. NEC did not order the panel until March 22, 2013.     The panel arrived at the 
job site on May 8, 2013.    If NEC had ordered the panel the day after Casitas approved the panel, 
the delivery date would have been the end of March. This delivery date would have provided plenty 
of time for NEC to install the panel. Since the delay was caused by NEC, NEC is not eligible for a 
time extension under the terms of the contract.  NEC did not reach substantial completion on the 
project until May 29, 2013 because of NEC’s unwillingness to complete other items of work, such as 
pulling conductors, placing concrete and wiring the pedestals to the subpanels.  This was all NEC’s 
choice. 
 
The second claim for a time extension is the CATV installation.  The CATV installation is disputed 
work under NEC Item 1 discussed above.  All work related to the CATV is included in the 
construction documents, except for the addition of the node for which two extra work days were 
provided. Therefore, NEC is not eligible for additional work days for this item. 
 
The third claim for a time extension relates to the single line diagram.  The single line diagram was 
not part of the contract documents and is not necessary to complete this project.  Conductor sizes 
were to be determined by the contractor based on the contractor’s selected conduit routes.  NEC 
requested Casitas to provide a single line diagram and Casitas provided one.  However, NEC did not 
like the single diagram provided.  After some discussion between NEC and Casitas, Casitas provided 
a revised single diagram. Casitas was under no contractual obligation to provide a single line 
diagram.  Casitas provided the single line diagram and revised single line diagrams at NEC’s request 
as documented in the letter dated March 5, 2013 with responses and subsequent correspondence. 
 
All of the delays related to the single line diagram are related to NEC’s inability or unwillingness to 
develop a contractor’s plan for installation. 
 
NEC’s “Additional Cost” Schedule Submitted with NEC’s Appeal of Final Cost Statement 
 
NEC submitted an additional cost schedule (dated June 10, 2013) with their appeal of the Final Cost 



Statement.  The cost schedule contains both the extra costs associated with NEC’s disputed work 
and their request for additional work days.  Below is a discussion of the both of these items. 
 
Additional Cost Associated w/Proposed Final Cost Statement 
 
NEC provided a cost breakdown for their claim on the disputed work.  NEC did not furnish the 
documentation to support the cost breakdown as required by Section 16 and Section 14.  
Specifically, NEC did not provide the name, classification and hours worked of the workers used on 
the extra work, a description and the amount of materials used, the type, size, and hours of operation 
of equipment used or Vendor’s invoices.  
 
In fact, some of the work appears to be claimed twice, such as additional excavation for the CATV 
system and then again under “Additional excavation and backfill required.”  The CATV conduits 
were installed in the same trench as the electrical conduit.  The additional cost list provided by NEC 
does not satisfy the time and material documentation required by Section 16 and Section 14.  
 
Additional Work Day Request 
 
NEC’s request for additional work days to complete the disputed items should be rejected because, 
for the reasons stated above, those disputed items are unsubstantiated and non-compensable. 
 
 
 
 



FINAL COST STATEMENT
Prepared June 5, 2013-Revised June 18, 2013

Base Bid $150,000
Change Order No. 1 $5,893.86
Change Order No. 2 $6,630.45
Extra Work 

Provide and install 16 node boxes $1,671.15

Provide and place additional 
   concrete for service panel pad $150.54

Predetermined Liquidated Damages (LD)
Notice to Proceed 2/8/2013
Working Days Allowed 30
Additional days by Change Order 15
Additional days by Extra Work 2
Required Completion Date 4/17/2013
Partial Completion Date 5/24/2013
Substantial Completion Date 5/29/2013
No. of days subject to partial LD's 5
No. of days subject to full LD's 37
Partial LD amount per day (24/50)x$500 $240
LD amount per day $500
Total amount of partial LD-5 x $240 $1,200
Total amount of full LD- 37 x $500/day 18500 ($19,700.00)

Final Contract Amount $144,646.00

Final cost statement assumes all punch list items are completed, including 
but not limited to, providing and installing cable TV 
wire, fencing and plastic posts.























































 
 

P.O. Box 3010 ● Ramona, CA ● (760) 787-9346 ● Fax (760) 440-0749  www.nativeelect.com 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

June 10, 2013 
 
To: CMWD 
 
Attn: Neil Cole 
 
Subject: Response to letter dated June 5, 2013 Final Cost Statement LCRA Campground B Spec 12-359  
 
Mr. Cole, 
 
Pursuant to Contract Specifications Part B-General Conditions Section 59. Disputed Final Payment, please consider this 
letter and attached documentation as our written statement and basis for disputing CMWD’s proposed final payments 
identified within the draft Final Cost Statement we were provided on June 5, 2013. For your review and consideration 
we have included within the attachments and backup materials a summary of the costs and time associated with the 
following disputed and extra work performed: 
 

1) CATV revisions final direction provided on 4/11/13. ($29,250.00) 
2) Revisions to include upgraded wire sizes, additional in ground pull boxes, revised panel locations, and restroom 

upgrades as required by the 3/11/13 and 4/5/13 Single Line diagrams.  ($73,380.86) 
3) Main water line work performed.  (4,150.00) 
4) Additional Trench Excavation and backfill.  ($9,000.00) 
5) Additional Equipment Charges.  ($2,268.00) 
6) Scope associated with providing an additional campsite with all items identified on the contract plans.  

($3,000.00) 
7) Extra work associated with removing and replacing existing conductors in place to accommodate the revisions 

required by the 3/11 and 4/5 Single Line Diagrams.  ($16,500.00) 
8) Modifications necessary to accommodate the existing concrete slab and conduits at metered switchboard 

location.  ($5,930.00) 
Total Additional Compensation Due NEC, Inc. including markup $159,704.78 

 
As a result of the extra and disputed work performed, significant additional costs and time were required to complete 
the project pursuant to the direction provided within the numerous revisions identified by CMWD staff. Upon 
completion of your review of this correspondence and back up materials NEC, Inc. respectfully requests a single project 
close out change order to provide us with additional time and compensation for the extra and disputed work performed. 

 
NEC, Inc. disputes CMWD is entitled to the credits claimed identified in your June 5, 2013 correspondence: 
  

1) CMWD direction requiring a sub panel to be relocated- NEC, Inc. incurred significant additional costs and time 
relocating Panel DB-3 as required by the direction provided pursuant to the 2nd revision of the single line by Mr. 
Evans on 4/5/13. NEC, Inc. disagrees that CMWD “allowed” a sub panel to be relocated and in fact required it to 
be relocated. Furthermore, NEC, Inc. disagrees that there should be any credits associated with this scope 



P.O. Box 3010 ● Ramona, CA ● (760) 787-9346 ● Fax (760) 440-0749  www.nativeelect.com 
 

performed and requests that all additional costs and time associated with completing the scope pursuant to the 
direction provided, be compensated for. 

 
2) Old wire- Pursuant to Contract Plan Sheet 3 General Note 16, the contractor is to remove from site all salvaged 

items the owner does not choose to retain. On February 12, 2013 NEC, Inc. coordinated with Mr. Evans all items 
that were to be salvaged by the owner. Mr. Dale Godfrey picked up these items for CMWD. Thereafter NEC, Inc. 
removed all remaining items from site pursuant to the contract. NEC, Inc. respectfully disagrees that there 
should be any credits due CMWD associated with old wire since CMWD never notified NEC, Inc. of its desire to 
keep this wire. 
 

3) Reduce Conduit size from 3” to 4”- It is not industry standard to install 4” conduit to 200 amp panels and, due to 
this, there was potential conflicts associated with installing 4” conduit. To to avoid the foregoing complication 
and reduce the risk of compromising the structural integrity of the new enclosures to be installed it was agreed 
between the District and NEC, Inc. that 3” conduit would be installed in lieu of the 4” previously indicated. 
CMWD did not identify this as a decrease in scope at the time and a Change Order was never processed. NEC, 
Inc. respectfully disagrees that there should be any credits associated with reducing conduit size. 
 

4) Sand backfill in lieu of slurry in roadway trenches- CMWD accepted our proposal to provide sand backfill in all 
areas where trench excavation occurred in roads, without identifying that credits would be associated. A Change 
Order was never processed reflecting a decrease in scope. NEC, Inc. respectfully disagrees that there should be 
any credits associated with sand backfill.  
 

NEC, Inc. disputes CMWD is entitled to any liquidated damages.  
 
The liquidated damages currently and previously asserted by CMWD are unfounded.  NEC is entitled to additional days 
for project delays and/or changes for which CMWD is responsible.  NEC, Inc. reserves all rights to interest and damages 
resulting from those funds being unlawfully withheld and demands that those funds being withheld be processed for 
payment immediately. CMWD identified numerous revisions throughout the course of the project that were not 
identified within the contract documents. Consequently, these design revisions impacted the construction schedule and 
in many instances delayed the project.  NEC, Inc. has documented a significant amount of time associated with the 
design revisions completed within the attachments and back up materials provided. CMWD’s proposed Liquidated 
Damages are entirely negated by the following issues which entitle NEC, Inc. to time extensions in excess of the number 
of days of Liquidated Damages asserted by CMWD including, but not limited to: 
 

1) The 30 days it took the local utility, Southern California Edison to approve the metered switchboard. 
2) The approximately 30 days of extra work required of NEC, Inc. relative to CATV system revisions directed by 

CMWD the day before substantial completion was originally scheduled.  
3) The approximately 30 days of delay caused by CMWD’s revision of the Single Line electrical drawings and 

the extra work required by these revisions.  
 

In conclusion, prior to the Board of Directors taking action and rendering its decision in regards to the Disputed Final 
Payment and associated correspondence, NEC, Inc. formally requests to be placed on the June 19, 2013 agenda to speak 
on the matter. Thank you for your time and assistance. 
 
 Respectfully, 
Will Hobbs, President  
 











CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  July 3, 2013 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Participation in the Ojai Chautauqua on the Future of Food 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors determine if there is interest in 
participating in the Ojai Chautauqua on the Future of Food and if so, determine the level 
of participation and provide direction to staff. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Recently, Director Baggerly received an email from Susan Haymer, Event Manager at 
Chautauqua: The Future of Food, offering an invitation to the Casitas Municipal Water 
District to participate in a community Chautauqua on the Future of Food.  The event is 
to be held at the Libbey Bowl, Ojai, on November 2, 2013.  A copy of Susan Haymer’s 
email and the Chautauqua brochure is attached for the Board’s consideration.   
 
The question for the District - is there interest in participating in this event, and if so, 
what level of participation or sponsorship?  The Board may consider any (1) one of four 
levels of sponsorship (last page of the brochure), (2) the authorization for Director(s) 
and/or staff attendance, or (3) no interest in participation by the District.  According to 
Susan Haymer, it is desired to have sponsorship commitments by July 28th. 
 
If sponsorship participation with a booth is desired, the District will need to consider it 
message and work toward a professional representation at this public event.  It will also 
require staffing of the booth.  It should also be known that the District is likely to 
participate in the Ojai Day, October 19th, which may carry the same message and 
presentation. 
 
This invitation has been reviewed by the Executive Committee. 
 
If you have any questions in this regard, please discuss your questions with me. 
 
 
 
 















 

 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  July 3, 2013 
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 
RE:  Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation Assist to Fund Rowing Dock  
 
Recommendation:  
 
It is recommended the Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation finance a rowing dock in the 
amount of $4,000. The Bureau of Reclamation will match that amount from existing grant 
R11AC20123 making a total contribution of $8,000.      
 
Background: 
 
The Lake Casitas Rowing Association “club” has been active in Lake Casitas for 6 years. 
Their activities complement the lake’s operations and are very popular with the Ojai Valley 
and Ventura area residents. There are 168 current club members. The club provides 
activities for all ages and we are especially pleased with the large number of teenagers who 
participate in the club activities for teambuilding, health and fitness skills that are positive 
influences for impressionable youth.   
 
The club uses rowing “shells” that are from 10 feet to 60 feet in length for its activities. To get 
on and off the lake water, the club uses a low-profile dock, basically 8 inches high or less as 
seen in below photo. In order to land a rowing shell on a dock, the rigging and the oars on 
one side of the shell go up over the dock so that the shell can basically stay level. Higher 
profile docks like the metal ones already at Casitas do not work for these types of shells.  
 

 
 



 

 

 
 
The current plastic dock at the lake utilized by the club was from the 1984 Olympic rowing 
competition at Lake Casitas. After the Olympics the dock was donated to UCSB and used for 
more than 20 years until a new one was purchased. In preparing to dispose of the old dock, 
UCSB offered it to the club and it was quickly accepted.  The club personnel dismantled it 
and drove it to Lake Casitas.  It was then donated to the Casitas Municipal Water District for 
club and public use. Up until this year it had been in fair condition for operation.  
 
This year the club reported that the dock has fallen apart and it is time for a new one. The 
rowing dock has always had unrestricted use and for the last four years has been open to 
public use. The club has reported that customers who store their kayaks/canoes in Trailer 
Storage use the dock to launch and land. Also, families with children from the Picnic #1 
gazebo area sit on the dock and look down into the shallow water to see fish, etc.  
 
Analysis: 
 
The club has successfully secured $20,000 in grant funding from the LA84, a foundation set 
up after the 1984 Olympics, and raised another $15,000 through fund-raising events and 
donations. The club is $8,000 short of the total needed to procure the dock and has 
requested that Casitas pay the outstanding balance. The Recreation Committee supported 
the club’s request at their July 1, 2013 meeting. The Bureau of Reclamation has agreed that 
Casitas can use a portion of existing grant funds toward the dock on a dollar per match.  
 
The specifications of the proposed dock are as follows: 
Dockside Products - 1000 Series – Low Profile Floating Dock System 
Connect-A-Dock 10 feet x 100 feet 
The photo shows the bottom coming up to support the top which prevents a soft feel 
when walking on the surface. The product is hollow with no polystyrene beads.  

Dock Cross Section Photo: 
 
 
 

The shelf life of a new dock is 25+ years and it is 
therefore recommended to support funding the dock 
which will belong to Casitas and be used for a 
successful program and for public use.  
 



 
 

1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  June 25, 2013  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for May 2013 
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations for May 2013:   
 

 May 2012 May 2013 April 2013 
Visitor Days 71,468 64,168 55,260 
Camps 6,001 7,485 5,167 
Cars 17,867 16,042 13,815 
Boats 420 344 450 
Kayaks & Canoes 7 18 11 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2011/2012 611,576
2012/2013 567,044
% Change -7.282

 
Boating  
There were 21 cables sold for new inspections, 21 boats were re-inspected and a total of 760 boats 
were retagged.  Nine boats failed the first inspection.        
 
Shoreline fishing at night was held May 23, 24, 25 and 31.   
 
Indian Mesa Cove was closed off for the annual bass spawn March 1. It remained closed off through  
May 31st.   
 
Administration 
The California Homebrewer’s Festival was held May 3 and 4 with approximately 1,800 in attendance.  
 
The Casitas Water Adventure held it’s annual soft opening on May 17. The soft opening launches the 
summer season each year.   
 
The Jr. Explorer was launched with a good attendance of 75 participants on May 25 to view the Ojai 
Raptor Center’s informative presentation.  The following day 44 attended, 29 of them youth who 
earned their Jr. Explorer patch.  
 



 
 

2

The movie scheduled for Saturday, May 25 of the holiday weekend unfortunately skipped causing 
disappointment for the 50 people who showed up to view the movie. The next evening however, was a 
successful Astronomy night for the over 50 people who attended.     
 
The Ojai Trolley service began its extended service into the Recreation Area.  This partnership with 
the City of Ojai scheduled the Ojai Trolley to depart from the City of Ojai and make several loops in 
the Recreation Area throughout the day every Saturday through Labor Day. This is a pilot program and 
successful ridership will encourage plans for the program’s continuance in the future.  
 
Campground Bass was off the reservation grid for the entire month due to the electrical upgrade 
project and unexpected setbacks to the project.  
 
Incidents  
Incidents in the month of May that required assistance from outside agencies included two alleged 
DUI’s, two reported thefts, shots fired in the Recreation Area, several various medical calls and three 
calls for disturbances/evictions.   
 
Revenue Reporting 
The figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective 
month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary 
generated by the Finance Manager.  
 
 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13

FY 10/11 597,387 475,594 213568 140193 115366 102686 188851 173107 231315 298909 328936 420623

FY 11/12 667535 453210 213194 163821 116,761 106499 191523 229629 243,042 281,733 398,081 746,106

FY 12/13 682,163 517,897 218,128 165031 195,123 112,644 211876 206020 311,017 262825 379,261

July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June







Casitas Municipal Water District

Monthly Cost Analysis - Ojai Flow

2012/2013

07/02/2013

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2010/2011 0.00 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,658.37

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 5,094.00 0.00 0.00 5,094.00

September 0.00 14,781.79 0.00 0.00 14,781.79

October 0.00 4,388.00 2,921.48 0.00 7,309.48

November 0.00 11,214.53 2,491.81 0.00 13,706.34

December 0.00 22,974.19 0.00 0.00 22,974.19

January 281.82 17,774.41 2,643.65 0.00 20,699.88

Feburary 0.00 4,422.00 1,332.35 0.00 5,754.35

March 550.00 12,263.94 3,711.60 0.00 16,525.54

April 0.00 37,797.66 761.65 0.00 38,559.31

May 0.00 29,590.40 761.63 0.00 30,352.03

June 0 52136.67 212.51 0 52,349.18

Total Cost YTD 831.82 212,437.59 14,836.68 Total Cost YTDTotal Cost TD    228,106.09

Total Project Cost 831.82 254,997.59 25,935.05 Total: Ojai Flow 281,764.46

Prepared by dcollin 07/02/2013 Page 1







Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2012-2013 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2012 / 2013 2011 / 2012

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 364 470 586 574 428 242 31 153 180 284 344 542 4198 3632

AG Ag 361 462 573 526 428 158 48 135 138 226 297 428 3780 2431

C Commercial 88 95 107 73 62 24 11 9 24 30 56 84 663 544

DI Interdepartmental 27 4 41 4 14 3 6 2 5 2 7 5 120 113

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 1 3 3 3 2 2 1 2 1 1 1 3 23 38

OT Other 32 30 42 28 30 10 4 7 5 11 22 23 244 212

R Residential 212 67 340 140 198 95 106 51 103 67 168 131 1678 1463

RS - P Resale Pumped 12 21 57 59 85 43 31 17 22 26 73 105 551 102

RS - G Resale Gravity 139 384 592 347 473 375 303 383 367 405 457 611 4836 6111

TE Temporary 1 1 3 1 2 0 0 1 0 1 2 1 13 9

Total 1237 1537 2344 1755 1722 952 541 760 845 1053 1427 1933 16,106 14,655

Total 2011/2012 1838 1864 1754 1540 1130 807 901 1048 1024 886 615 1248 N/A 14655













~+~ED sr~,..(O'.s-

f" c \ UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
\~1~ ! REGION IX 
"'1-"'(PR~~ 75 Hawthorne Street 

San Francisco, CA 94105 

June 28, 20 13 

Thomas Howard, Executive Director 
State Water Resources Control Board 
1001 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 958 12-0100 

re: Ventura River TMDL- Resolution 20 13-0005 

Dear Mr. Howard, 

We have received the Californ ia State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) submittal of 
the amendments to the Water Qual ity Control Plan for the Los Angeles Region containing Total 
Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) for listed water qual ity impairments in California ' s Ventura 
River, including its estuary and tributaries (State's TMDLs). Based on EPA's review of the 
TMDLs submitted under Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 303(d), EPA finds the State' s TMDLs 
adequately address the poll utants of concern and upon implementation wi ll lead to the attainment 
of the applicable water quality standards for the Ventura River, including its estuary and 
tributaries . All required elements are adeq uately addressed; therefore, the TMDLs submitted by 
the State Board for the Ventura River are hereby approved pursuant to CWA Section 303(d)(2). 

EPA received a complete TMDL package, Resolution 2013-0005 , for review from the State on 
June 4, 2013 (Los Angeles Regional Water Qual ity Control Board adopted on December 6, 
2012; State Board adopted on February 19, 20 13; and Office of Administrative Law approved on 
June 4, 2013). The State Board adopted the TMDLs to address algae, eutrophic conditions and 
nutrient impairments in the Ventura River, its estuary and tributaries, as identified on the State of 
California' s CWA Section 303(d) lists from 1998 through 2010. The TMDLs include load and 
wasteload allocations as needed, take into consideration seasonal variat ions and critical 
conditions, and provide adequate margins of safety. The State has provided adequate 
opportunities for public review and comment on the TMDLs, and demonstrated how public 
comments were considered in the fi nal TMDLs. The TMDL submittal also contains detailed 
plans for implementing the TMDLs. EPA has reviewed these plans and that review has informed 
EPA's understanding and approval of the TMDLs. However, EPA does not act upon the 
implementation plans themselves. 

Concurrent with the development and public review of the State TMDLs, EPA developed 
proposed TMDLs to address the CWA Section 303(d) li stings for pumping and water diver ion 
impairment in Reaches 3 and 4 of the Ventura River. EPA released its draft TMDLs for public 
comment on December 10, 2012, held a public hearing on January 14, 20 13, and accepted public 
comments on the draft TMDLs through January 25, 2013. 



EPA found that the effects of pumping and water diversions in these reaches were correlated 
with the impairment of aquatic life and cold water habitat benefici al uses due to nutrient loading 
and algae growth. Consequently, EPA's draft TMDLs for Reaches 3 and 4 ofthe Ventura River 
addre sed water quali ty impairments of designated beneficial uses that were also addressed by 
the State's TMDLs for algae, eutrophic conditions and nutrients. EPA's proposed concentration
based wasteload and load allocations for total nitrogen and total phosphorus were consistent with 
the mass-based nitrogen and phosphorus loadings specified in the State's TMDLs. EPA's 
proposed TMDLs were developed to address water quality impairments caused by nitrogen and 
phosphorus under current hydrological conditions; EPA did not attempt to delineate the Ventura 
River's natural hydrological conditions, or address other issues related to the pumping and 
divers ion of water in Reaches 3 and 4 ofthe Ventura River. 

Based on EPA' s approval of the State's TMDLs addressing the algae, eutrophic conditions and 
nutrient impairments, together with other available information regard ing Reaches 3 and 4 of the 
Ventura River, EPA has determined that it is unnecessary at this time to establish separate 
nitrogen and phosphorus TMDLs for the pumping and water diversion impairment listings fo r 
Reaches 3 and 4 ofthe Ventura River. The State's TMDLs address the same beneficial uses as 
EPA's draft TMDLs, identify the same stressors as EPA, were developed with reference to the 
ex ist ing hydrological conditions in the watershed, including pumping and water diversion 
activiti es, and provide the same nutrient loading capacities. The State 's nitrogen and phosphorus 
TMDLs also apply throughout the Ventura River, its estuary, and all tributaries. EPA finds that 
the State ' s nitrogen and phosphorus TMDLs provide equivalent protection of water qual ity in 
Reaches 3 and 4 of the Ventura River as EPA' s proposed TMDLs. Therefore, EPA is not 
establi hing nitrogen and phosphorus TMDLs for the pumping and water diversion impairment 
listings. Other State and Federal agencies have add itional authorities which may be available to 
address other potential impacts of pumping and water diversion within Reaches 3 and 4. 

EPA recognizes that implementation ofthe State's TMDLs is already underway, and that it 
involves highly innovative and rigorous approaches to both tracking and accounting of pollutant 
load reductions a well as on-the-ground techniques for achieving water quality improvements. 
We strongly encourage the State to continue its important work with responsible parties and 
affected stakeholders to implement these strategies. 

Si~cerel~ 

~ ~10nd 
~Director, Water Division 



June 28, 2013 

USEPA Response to Comments on the Draft Total Maximum Daily Loads for 

Ventura River Reaches 3 and 4  

 

On December 10, 2012, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) solicited public 
comments on the draft Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) for Ventura River Reaches 3 and 4.  The 
State of California placed these river segments on its 303(d) list for the impairment of “pumping and 
water diversions” in 1996.  USEPA held a public hearing on the draft TMDLs on January 14, 2013, and 
accepted public comments through January 25, 2013.   

USEPA has determined that it is unnecessary at this time to establish separate TMDLs to address the 
pumping and water diversion impairment listings for Reaches 3 and 4 of the Ventura River.  In 
Resolution 2013-0005, the State of California has adopted TMDLs to address algae, eutrophic conditions 
and nutrient impairments in the Ventura River.  Today the USEPA is approving these State TMDLs.  The 
State’s TMDLs address the same beneficial uses as USEPA’s draft TMDLs, identify the same stressors as 
USEPA’s draft TMDLs, were developed with reference to the existing hydrological conditions in the 
watershed, including pumping and water diversion activities, and provide the same nutrient loading 
capacities.  The State’s TMDLs also apply throughout the Ventura River, its estuary, and all tributaries.  
USEPA finds that the State’s TMDLs provide equivalent protection of water quality in Reaches 3 and 4 
of the Ventura River as USEPA’s proposed TMDLs.  Therefore, USEPA is not establishing separate 
TMDLs to address the pumping and water diversion impairment listings. 

In light of this determination, USEPA provides the following responses to the public comments received 
during the public comment period on USEPA’s draft TMDLs: 

Comments Opposing Establishment of Final TMDLs 

The comments that raised issues with the factual or legal bases for the proposed TMDLs, or which 
proposed limitations or modifications to the proposed TMDLs, have been addressed by USEPA’s 
decision to not issue final TMDLs at this time.  

Requests to “Delist” or Retain the Section 303(d) listing for Reaches 3 and 4 

Comments:  Some commenters asked USEPA to “delist” the pumping and water diversions impairment 
for Ventura River Reaches 3 and 4, based on a lack of evidence supporting the original listing in 1996 or 
because of events that have occurred since the original listing.  (Ventura County; Farm Bureau of Ventura 
County; Rancho Matilija Mutual Water Company; Ventura Water)  Two commenters asked USEPA to 
retain this impairment listing.  (Heal the Bay; Santa Barbara Channelkeeper) 

Response:  The status of the Section 303(d) impairment listing is not within the scope of this TMDL 
determination.   Any changes to the Ventura River listings would have to be initiated through the Los 
Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board.  The State Water Resources Control Board’s “Water 
Quality Control Policy for Developing California’s Clean Water Act Section 303(d) List,” states that 
interested parties can request that an existing listing be reassessed according to the Policy’s delisting 
factors. 



Comments in Favor of Establishment of the TMDLs 

Comments:  Commenters support the TMDLs and the inclusion of concentration-based Load Allocations 
and Waste Load Allocations, targets for dissolved oxygen and algal biomass, and explicit margin of 
safety. (Heal the Bay; Santa Barbara Channelkeeper)   

Response:  For the reasons described above, USEPA has determined that it is unnecessary at this time to 
establish TMDLs for Reaches 3 and 4 of the Ventura River.  USEPA expects that the State’s recently 
approved TMDLs will provide equivalent protection of water quality when they are implemented.   

Comments:  The TMDLs will not fully address the impairment due to pumping and water diversions.  
Commenters urge USEPA to explicitly state this in the TMDL.  Better water quality doesn’t ameliorate 
the issue of low flows.  Reduced surface flow limits the extent of cold water habitat and impairs contact 
and non-contact recreation uses.  Groundwater pumpers are not listed as responsible parties.  Adoption of 
a TMDL that claims to address pumping and water diversions could hamper efforts to effectively address 
issues associated with low flows.   (Heal the Bay; Santa Barbara Channelkeeper) 

Response:  The proposed TMDLs were directed at water quality problems associated with nutrient 
loadings in Reaches 3 and 4 of the Venture River.  USEPA acknowledges that the proposed TMDLs were 
not expected to address all issues in Reaches 3 and 4 of the Ventura River that might be associated with  
pumping and water diversions.    

Comments Requesting Other USEPA Action 

Comments:  USEPA should provide additional detailed recommendations for additional flow recovery 
efforts.  USEPA’s list of recommendations in the TMDL should include a program to preserve minimum 
base flows, action plans to address fish stranding and recreation, real-time monitoring of flows and 
diversions, and water conservation and efficiency programs.  (Heal the Bay; Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper)   

Response:  USEPA agrees that establishment of TMDLs would not adequately address all aquatic impacts 
that are related to pumping, diversions and flows in the Ventura River.  However, recommendations for 
flow recovery efforts are not within the scope of USEPA’s TMDL analysis, or our determination that 
separate TMDLs are not necessary for Reaches 3 and 4 at this time.  

Comment:  USEPA should engage and collaborate with other agencies to complete a comprehensive 
assessment of pumping impacts and devise a plan.  (Association of California Water Agencies; Farm 
Bureau of Ventura County; Heal the Bay; Santa Barbara Channelkeeper)  USEPA should use this TMDL 
concept to initiate a program for stakeholders to develop water balance and operation guidelines.  (Ojai 
Valley Green Coalition)  

Response:  Prior to issuance of the draft TMDLs, USEPA worked with the LA RWQCB, the commenters, 
and other stakeholders on a draft Memorandum of Agreement to put in place an alternative program of 
activities to address the impacts of pumping and water diversions on steelhead trout habitat and other 
beneficial uses of the Ventura River.  This effort ended without success in September 2012.  USEPA  
supports further efforts by the Ventura River stakeholders to comprehensively assess the impacts of 
pumping and diversion activities and address its detrimental impacts.  USEPA believes that the State and 



other Federal agencies may be in a better position to lead an assessment and planning process with the 
involvement of local agencies, water users, nongovernmental organizations, and other stakeholders. 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

07/02/13

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR BK 31331VK96 06/30/2014 $973,829.73 $973,812.84 5.650% 04/01/2013 6.02% 358

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,388,729.23 $1,302,291.00 1.625% 10/03/2012 8.05% 2142

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $733,515.34 $679,358.40 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.20% 2859

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XKTV7 06/13/2014 $976,194.32 $976,121.30 4.875% 04/01/2013 6.04% 341

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XLWN1 09/12/2014 $985,309.77 $984,544.50 5.250% 04/01/2013 6.09% 430

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/2013 $705,741.05 $709,359.00 3.125% 07/01/2010 4.39% 161

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $711,960.45 $733,656.00 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.54% 700

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $746,613.10 $769,160.00 4.750% 07/19/2010 4.76% 855

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34WJ 08/28/2014 $998,799.35 $998,455.62 0.375% 04/01/2013 6.17% 416

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $692,951.55 $692,247.82 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.28% 1213

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,158,761.31 $1,156,240.00 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.15% 1575

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/2013 $704,871.85 $706,650.00 4.125% 07/01/2010 4.37% 85

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/2014 $710,714.67 $720,335.00 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.45% 386

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $209,972.10 $194,338.00 2.375% 02/11/2013 1.20% 3071

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/2014 $711,448.39 $723,499.00 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.47% 434

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,125,237.36 $1,179,250.90 1.375% 07/06/2010 7.29% 1813

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/2013 $701,337.10 $704,760.00 1.500% 07/01/2010 4.36% 179

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $705,919.12 $718,620.00 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.44% 508

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,110,295.21 $1,172,840.62 1.375% 07/01/2010 7.25% 2353

Accrued Interest $74,689.13

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $16,052,201 $16,170,229 88.18%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $444 $444 0.35% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,167,079 $2,167,079 0.65% Estimated 11.82%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,219,723 $18,337,751 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,230,421 $18,459,965

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,524,851 $14,876,503

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $636,702 $636,702

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $7 $7 0.010%

CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $0 $0 0.000%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $18,856,432 $18,974,460

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $18,195,410 $18,547,061

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	07-10-13 Agenda.pdf
	06-26-13 Min
	Bills
	Rec Minutes 07 01 13
	Executive Minutes 07 2 2013
	Memo to Board-NEC-Final Cost Statement-7-5-2013 (1)
	Final Cost Statement-revised June 18, 2013
	response to NEC request for change dated June 6, 2013-signed
	NEC proposal submittal
	2013-06-10 NEC 6-10-13 Written Statement
	NEC requested final cost statement
	ACWA Regulatory Summit
	Ojai Chautauqua
	Chautauqua Brochure 07 05 2013
	DockRmndBoardMemo-070313
	LCRA report May
	Charles Z Fedak memo
	Ojai Flow - June Montly Costs 2012-13
	Annual Disclosure of reimbursements
	ACWA Call for nominations
	2013-06-28-ventura-algae-tmdl-finding-r3r4-finding-puming-wtr-div (1)
	2013-06-28-ventura-river-response-to-comments
	Investment Report 07-02-2013

